ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 30, 2004
8:05 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 461

"An Act relating to enhanced 911 surcharges and to energency
services dispatch systens of municipalities, certain villages,
and public corporations established by municipalities.”

- MOVED CSHB 461( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 536

"An Act relating to applications for permanent fund divi dends by
certain individuals serving in the arnmed forces; and providing
for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 536( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 557
"An Act regarding | obbyist prohibitions."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 460
"An Act relating to absences to provide care for certain
relatives for purposes of pernmanent fund dividend eligibility;
and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 30, 2004



SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 25

Reconmmendi ng that certain federal funding restrictions be eased
so that nore villages in Alaska would qualify for assistance
relating to fl oodi ng and erosion.

- MOVED SJR 25 QUT OF COW TTEE
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 227(STA) am
"An Act relating to nunicipal runoff elections and to nunici pal
initiative and referendum el ections.”
- MOVED HCS CSSB 227(STA) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 461

SHORT TITLE: EMERGENCY SERVI CES DI SPATCH 911 SURCHARGE
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

02/ 16/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 16/ 04 (H) CRA, STA

03/ 02/ 04 (H) CRA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 02/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d <Subcomm ttee Assigned>
03/ 02/ 04 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 27/ 04 (H) CRA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

04/ 27/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 461(CRA) Qut of Committee
04/ 27/ 04 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 28/ 04 (H) CRA RPT CS(CRA) NT 1DP 5NR

04/ 28/ 04 (H DP: MORGAN, NR. ANDERSON, KOOKESH,
04/ 28/ 04 (H) SAMUELS, WOLF, CI SSNA

04/ 29/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

04/ 29/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 29/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 30/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 536

SHORT TI TLE: PFUND APPLI CATI ON DEADLI NES FOR M LI TARY
SPONSCR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF ECON DEV, | NT TRADE & TOURI SM

03/ 15/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 15/ 04 (H) MV, STA

04/ 06/ 04 (H) MLV AT 1: 00 PM CAPlI TOL 124

04/ 06/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 536(M.V) CQut of Conmittee
04/ 06/ 04 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

04/ 07/ 04 (H M.V RPT CS(M.V) NT 4DP 1NR

04/ 07/ 04 (H DP: LYNN, MASEK, CI SSNA, STEPOVI CH;
04/ 07/ 04 (H) NR. DAHLSTROM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 30, 2004



04/ 30/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

Bl LL: HB 557
SHORT TITLE: LOBBYI ST PROHI BI TI ONS
SPONSOR(S): RULES

04/ 21/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
04/ 21/ 04 (H STA

04/ 26/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

04/ 26/ 04 (H <Bi || Hearing Postponed to 4/30>
04/ 30/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 460

SHORT TI TLE: ALLOWABLE ABSENCES AND PFDS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) KERTTULA

02/ 16/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) STA, FIN

04/ 01/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAP| TOL 102

04/ 01/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 01/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 30/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAP| TOL 102
BILL: SJR 25

SHORT TI TLE: FLOODI NG AND EROSI ON CONTROL ASSI STANCE
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) OLSON

02/ 06/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 06/ 04 (S) CRA, STA

02/ 25/ 04 (S) CRA AT 1:30 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

02/ 25/ 04 (S Moved SJR 25 Qut of Commttee

02/ 25/ 04 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 27/ 04 (S) CRA RPT  5DP

02/ 27/ 04 (S DP: STEDVAN, LINCOLN, STEVENS G ELTON,
02/ 27/ 04 (S WAGONER

03/ 30/ 04 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 30/ 04 (S) Moved SJR 25 Qut of Conmittee

03/ 30/ 04 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 31/ 04 (S) STA RPT 4DP

03/ 31/ 04 (S) DP: STEVENS G COWDERY, STEDVAN, GUESS
04/ 16/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 16/ 04 (S) VERSI ON: SJR 25

04/ 19/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 19/ 04 (H) CRA, STA

04/ 27/ 04 (H CRA RPT 5DP

04/ 27/ 04 (H DP: ANDERSQON, SAMUJELS, WOLF, KOOKESH,
04/ 27/ 04 (H) MORGAN

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 30, 2004



04/ 27/ 04 (H) CRA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124
04/ 27/ 04 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

04/ 27/ 04 (H M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 30/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: SB 227
SHORT TITLE: MUNICl PAL ELECTI ONS
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) STEVENS G

05/ 15/ 03 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
05/ 15/ 03 (S) CRA, STA

02/ 18/ 04 (S) CRA AT 1:30 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

02/ 18/ 04 (S) Moved SB 227 Qut of Conmittee

02/ 18/ 04 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 19/ 04 (S) CRA RPT 4DP 1NR

02/ 19/ 04 (S) DP: STEDMAN, LI NCOLN, WAGONER,

02/ 19/ 04 (S) STEVENS G NR ELTON

02/ 24/ 04 (S STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 24/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 24/ 04 (S M NUTE( STA)

02/ 26/ 04 (S STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 26/ 04 (S) Moved CSSB 227(STA) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 26/ 04 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 27/ 04 (S) STA RPT CS FORTHCOM NG 1DP 2NR

02/ 27/ 04 (S) DP: STEVENS G NR COADERY, STEDVAN
03/ 01/ 04 (S STA CS RECEI VED SAME TI TLE
03/ 26/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 26/ 04 (S) VERSI ON: CSSB 227(STA) AM

03/ 29/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 29/ 04 (H) CRA, STA

04/ 27/ 04 (H CRA RPT 1DP 4NR 1AM

04/ 27/ 04 (H DP: ANDERSON;, NR: SAMUJELS, WOLF,
04/ 27/ 04 (H) KOOKESH, MORGAN, AM Cl SSNA

04/ 27/ 04 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

04/ 27/ 04 (H Moved Qut of Commttee

04/ 27/ 04 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 30/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

MATTHEW RUDI G St af f

to Representative JimHolm

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative Holm
sponsor of HB 461.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 30, 2004



LI NDA FREED, City Manager

Cty of Kodiak

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 461.

DAVI D G BBS, Energency Manager

Kenai Peni nsul a Bor ough

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of increased |ocal
control over surcharge assessnent and answered questions, during
the hearing on HB 461.

STEVE THOWPSON, Mayor

City of Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 461.

JI M HARPRI NG Menber

Nat i onal Emergency Numbering Associ ati on ( NENA)

(No address provided.)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 461.

Bl LL DOOLI TTLE, Project Manager

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

(No address provided.)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 461.

GAI L VO GTLANDER, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral - Statew de
Secti on Supervi sor

Torts and Wrker’s Conpensati on Secti on

Civil Division (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent
during the hearing on HB 461.

JAMES R JACKSON JR., Attorney at Law

General Communi cations | ncorporated (GCl)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Suggested a change of |anguage for HB 461.

JOHN FULLENW DER, Fire Chief

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 461.

MARK MEW Presi dent
Al aska Chapter

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 30, 2004



Nat i onal Enmergency Number Associ ati on ( NENA)
(No address provided.)
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 461.

ALLEN STOREY, Li eutenant

Central Ofice

D vision of Alaska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of specific proposed
| anguage in Section 1 of HB 461, Version Z.

JON BI TTNER, St af f

to Representative Cheryll Heinze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 536 on behal f of
Representative Heinze, sponsor; answered questions during the
heari ng on HB 557.

REPRESENTATI VE CHERYLL HEI NZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions, as sponsor of HB 536;
presented HB 557, as sponsor.

SHARON BARTON, Director

Central Ofice

Per manent Fund D vi dend Di vi sion

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to a question, on behalf of the
departnment, during the hearing on HB 536.

HAROLD HEI NZE

(No address provided.)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
heari ng on HB 557.

TAMMY KEMPTON, Regul ation of Lobbyi ng

Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion (APCC)

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of APCC,
during the hearing on HB 557.

PAMELA LaBOLLE, President

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 30, 2004



Al aska State Chanber of Commerce (ASCC)
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 557.

AURORA HAUKE, St aff

to Representative Beth Kerttula

Al aska State Legislature

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 460, on
behal f of Representative Kerttula, sponsor.

HAVEN HARRI S, St af f

to Senat or Donny O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SJR 25 on behalf of Senator
A son, sponsor.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, presented SB 227.

DALE STRAUBE, St aff

to Senator Ben Stevens

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on behalf of Senator Ben
St evens.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-74, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:05 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Lynn, and Weyhrauch were present at the call to order.
Representatives Coghill, Berkowitz, and Guenberg arrived as the
nmeeting was i n progress.

HB 461- EMERGENCY SERVI CES DI SPATCH 911 SURCHARGE
[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of HB 499.]

Number 0024

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 461, "An Act relating to enhanced 911 surcharges

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 30, 2004



and to energency services dispatch systens of nunicipalities,
certain villages, and public corporations established by
muni cipalities.”

Number 0044

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH of fered his understanding that a notion had been
made at the [4/29/04] neeting to adopt the conmittee substitute
(CS) for HB 461, Version 23-LS1633\Z, Cook, 4/28/04, as a work
draft and an objection had been nmade to that notion. [ No
further discussion took place regarding that objection, the
commttee treated Version Z as adopted.]

Number 0085

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 3, Line 22

Del ete "resolution or"
Page 3, Line 31

Del ete "resolution or"

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM obj ected [for discussion purposes].
Number 0100

MATTHEW RUDI G Staff to Representative Jim Holm Alaska State
Legislature, testifying on behalf of Representative Holm
sponsor of HB 461, explained the purpose of Amendnent 1 is to
clear up language in current statute.

Number 0150

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM w thdrew his objection. There being no
further objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Number 0169

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt Anendnent 2, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 3, Line 26

| nsert after conpany ", conpetitive |ocal
exchange conpany"
Page 4, Line 21

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 30, 2004



Insert after conmpany ", or a conpetitive | ocal
exchange conpany”

CHAI R VWVEYHRAUCH obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM i ndi cated that Amendnent 2 defines what [the
| ocal conpani es] are.

Nunber 0245

MR. RUDI G said Amendnent 2 clarifies that all phone conpanies in
the state are covered under the bill

Number 0281

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH renoved his objection to Anmendnment 2 and asked
if there was any further objection. There being none, Amendnent
2 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 0339

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt Amendnent 3, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 5, Line 26
I nsert after conpany "conpetitive exchange
conpany, w reless reseller,™

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN obj ected for discussion purposes.

MR RUDIG clarified how the |anguage would read wth Anendnent
3. In response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch, he confirned
that, in formulating the anendnents that the conmittee is
consi dering today, he had sone contact with the follow ng: t he
Al aska Muni ci pal League (AM.), the National Enmergency Nunbering
Associ ation (NENA), [Al aska Comunication Systens, Inc. (ACS)],
and [ General Communications |Incorporated (GCl)].

Number 0495
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN renoved his objection.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if there was any further objection. There
bei ng none, Amendnent 3 was adopt ed.

Number 0509

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt Anendnent 4, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 5, Line 24
Delete "(1)"
I nsert "(6)"

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN obj ect ed.

MR RUDIG directed that conmttee's attention to page 2, lines
16- 20, which read as foll ows:

(6) is based on the exercise or perfornmance
of a duty in connection with an energency services
di spatch system or an enhanced 911 system incl uding
providing, nmintaining, or operating any toll-free,
statewide default public safety answering point, and
is not based on an intentional act or omssion
anounting to msconduct or on an act or om sSion
anounting to gross negligence.

MR. RUDI G explained that Amendnent 4 is a cross-reference [to
that | anguage]. He added, "And that was the suggestion of
[Gail] Voigtlander, [Departnent of Law."

Nunmber 0587

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN renoved his objection.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if there was any further objection. There
bei ng none, Amendnent 4 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 0608

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt Amendnent 5, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 4, Line 28
Del ete "address"
| nsert "statenent"
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH obj ect ed.

Nunber 0644

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 30, 2004



MR. RUDI G offered his understanding that Anmendnent 5 would help
phone conpanies delineate between residential and commerci al
properties.

Nunmber 0653

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a series of buildings rented out
as apartnents woul d be considered conmercial or residential.

MR. RUDI G answered that "it would be per residential line in ...
an apartnment building."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said people get a statenent in the mail and
nuner ous people may get statenents within one address.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that he is trying to figure out
if there are any situations in which there are multiple
residents in one place with only one statenent generated.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM clarified that [the statenent] would be sent
to the address.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH renoved his objection. He asked if there was
any further objection to Arendnent 5. There being none, it was
so ordered.
Number 0738

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt Anendnent 6, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 4, Line 24
Insert after conpany "or wireless reseller,™

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN obj ect ed.

MR. RUDI G observed that Amendnent 6 is simlar to the previously
adopted Amendnents 2 and 3; it is all-inclusive.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN wi t hdrew hi s objection.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there were further objections. There
bei ng none, Amendnent 6 was adopt ed.

Number 0975

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 30, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the commttee would hear public
t esti nony.

Nunmber 0882

LI NDA FREED, City Manager, Cty of Kodiak, enphasized that HB
461 is an inportant issue to the Cty of Kodiak, which is the
regional public safety answering point for the entire Kodiak
ar ea. She said the city operates the enhanced E-911 system for
the Kodiak road system She stated that the nost inportant
portion of the bill is [Section 4], which would, by ordinance,
give the city the ability to set a levy at the appropriate |evel
for the conmunity. She said, "W would urge your passage of
this legislation, so that it nay go on to the [House] floor and
perhaps to the Senate and get ... passed this year." M. Freed
of fered to answer questions.

Nunmber 0960

M5. FREED, in response to questions from Representative Seaton

revealed that [the Gty of Kodiak's] current charge is at a cap
of 75 cents per nonth, per Iine. She predicted that the city
woul d continue to subsidize with other tax resources, such as
its sales tax. She said, "I believe the city council would | ook
at trying to recoup sonme additional revenue from the |evy, but
woul d not levy the entire amount to pay for the whole system"™

M5. FREED, in response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch, noted

that another portion of the bill that [the city] likes is that
it would be able to "use the funds to help pay for dispatch
services." She continued as foll ows:

E-911 is only the calls comng into the center; we
actually have a large infrastructure built up to have

the calls go out of the center. So, we spend,
roughly, $500,000 annually to operate our E-911 and
energency dispatch center. So, we bring in roughly
$45-50, 000 a year from the current |evy. So, it's a
substantial |ocal governnent subsidy, through sales
t ax.

Nunmber 1061

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG directed attention to page 4,
[ beginning on line 16 through line 19], which read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 30, 2004



The nunicipality may [ONLY] use the enhanced 911
surcharge for the enhanced 911 system and for the
actual | abor and equi pnent used to provide energency
services dispatch, but not for costs of providing the
nedical, police, fire, rescue, or other energency
service, or for any other purpose.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Freed, "Do you support that
limtation on your |ocal power?"

MS. FREED answered yes. She said she interprets that | anguage
as allowng a broader use of the funds. She added, "W don't
intend to use any of the levy that we mght be able to assess
for actual response activities."

Number 1115

DAVID G BBS, Energency Mnager, Kenai Peninsula Borough, told
the commttee that he is a resident of Soldotna and adm nisters
the 911 program for the borough. He stated that the borough
applauds the increased |ocal contr ol over the surcharge

assessnment, because it will enable the borough to recover nore
[money]. Currently, all the nmunicipalities in the borough run a
deficit of approximately $1.8 nmillion and collect approximately
$650,000 in surcharge revenue. The cost for all of the
jurisdictions, including all of the cities, is approxinmately
$2.5 mllion for 911 and di spatch services.

MR GBBS noted that the bill does not define the term

"emergency services dispatch”, and therefore he suggested adding
a definition to AS 29.35.137, based on the national standards of
either NENA or the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA).
The definition should include conputer-aided dispatch and other
processes by which an alarm received at a communi cation center
[is] transmtted to an -energency response facility or to
energency response units in the field.

MR RUDIG noted that there was a definition of "energency
servi ces di spatch” and he doesn't know why it was pul |l ed out.

Nunber 1260
MR GBBS, in response to a question from Representative

Berkowitz, noted that one of the definitions to which he had
referred could be found in the NFPA standard 12.21.1221.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 30, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked how the public would benefit from having
that definition included in the bill

MR d BBS answered as foll ows:

wel |, in our situation, in the Kenai Peni nsul a
Bor ough, the borough assunes the responsibility for
call -taking, E-911 services. Many of the cities, for
exanpl e, Kenai, Honmer, and Seward, actually provide
di spatch servi ces. One of the ... concerns we have
about this bill: If the Act doesn't clarify how

revenues are to be collected and dissem nated, based
upon t he differing services anongst differing
muni ci palities.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked why it wouldn't be okay for the

municipalities to "figure it out thenselves.™ Furt hernore, he
asked why the legislature would want to "put it in state statute
to tell you how to dissemnate the funds to individua
municipalities within a borough.” He offered his understanding

that the Kenai Peninsula Borough is a second class borough,
which he said is the sane as the Fairbanks [Northstar] Borough
where the dispatch center is run by the Gty of Fairbanks, not
t he bor ough.

MR GBBS replied that [the Kenai Peninsula Borough] runs the
centralized call-taking facility and dispatch center. He added,
"W al so have a borough-run dispatch center and the cities also
run di spatch centers.™

Nunber 1352

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he hopes that definition will be
included in the bill. He noted that "all the other terns are
defined under [AS] 29.35.137.

Nunmber 1365

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Gbbs if he is saying that he
would like to see the revenues go to 911 receiving centers, but
that he doesn't want to see them funneled off to fund |ocal
di spatch systens, such as "regular police and fire" dispatch
syst ens.

MR. G BBS stated his concern is that if the revenue collections
are not adequate to cover "the total cost of both services,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 30, 2004



we're going to be faced with a situation on how to allocate
t hose revenues between nultiple jurisdictions.”

Nunber 1410
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH turned to the definition, which read as foll ows:

"enmergency services dispatch" neans a service
offered by a nmunicipality that provides continuous day
and night dispatch of energency nedical, police, fire,
or rescue services using enhanced 911 facilities.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked Representative Berkowitz if he would offer
that as [ Conceptual Anendnent 7].

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ said, "I would offer that if we strike
the term'by a nunicipality', because it's not always offered by
a nmunicipality.”

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified that [Conceptual Anendnent 7, as
anended] woul d read:

"enmer gency servi ces di spat ch” neans a
service offered that provides continuous day and night
di spatch of enmergency nedical, police, fire, or rescue
servi ces using enhanced 911 facilities.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH obj ected [to Conceptual Amendnent 7, as anended,
for discussion purposes].

Nunber 1450

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if that definition cones fromthe
NFPA source previously referred to by M. G bbs.

MR. G BBS answered he doesn't know.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the commttee |ook at

the definition referenced by M. G bbs, because it is apparently
a well-defined term

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he would like to take action on the
anmendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his understanding that if

[ "enhanced 911 systenf] is defined in Title 29, then it needs to
be referenced in the anendnent to Title 9, in Sections 1 and 2

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- April 30, 2004



of the bill, otherwse "they won't necessarily |ook back at
Title 29 for the definition.”

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH suggested a conform ng anendnent.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH renoved his objection to Amendnent 7, [as
anended]. He asked if there was any further objection.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Does that require that it be an
enhanced 911 system or is that just an option under that
definition?"

Number 1535

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noted that the title of the bill deals wth
enhanced 911 and 911 energency dispatch systens. He suggested
that the word "enhanced" coul d be del et ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 2, line 17,
which refers to "energency services dispatch system or an
enhanced 911 systent. He said, "So, presumably, sone of these
pl aces m ght not have enhanced systens."

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM reiterated that "energency services dispatch
systens” is in the title of the bill

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked again if there was any further objection
to Amendnent 7, [as anended]. There being none, Anendnent 7,
[ as anended], was adopt ed.

Nunber 1588

MR. G BBS turned to Section 4 of the bill, which would anmend AS
29.35.131(a) by authorizing a surcharge, based wupon each
exchange billing statenment for wireline tel ephones. He stated,

"We, as a borough, strongly encourage the existing |anguage to
remain, where the charge is based on access lines for wreline
t el ephones. " He noted that nmany addresses have nunerous
wireline telephones, and the borough's costs for naintaining,
for exanple, ALl [automatic location identification] database
information are not reduced by virtue of tel ephones' sharing the
sanme billing address. He continued as foll ows:

By only authorizing one surcharge per billing address,
the state is requiring those people with one tel ephone
line to subsidize those with nore than one tel ephone
line to their billing address.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 30, 2004



MR. A BBS added that inmposing a surcharge based upon billing
address is (indisc.) national practice.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said, "Basically, ... this is a nmotion to
rescind our action in adopting Anendnent 5, which deleted
"addr ess" and i nserted "statenment". He of fered hi s

understanding that M. Gbbs wants the word "address" added
back.

MR GBBS clarified, "Actually, we would encourage the charge to
be based on access line, which is the |anguage of the original
bill version."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH observed that M. Gbbs was referring to the
| anguage on page 4, lines 28-29, which read: "on a |ocal
exchange billing address [ACCESS LI NE] for a wreline
t el ephone. ™

Nunmber 1681

MR. RUDI G said the point of enhanced 911 is that the responder
wi || go to the office from which the call ori gi nat es.
Therefore, it is fairer for people in a residence with nmultiple
lines to only pay one surcharge. He said it was a conprom se

worked out with AM.; the intent was not to have those people
charged for their nodem and facsimle |ines, for exanple.

Nunber 1745

REPRESENTATI VE = SEATON, regar di ng t he previ ously adopt ed
Amendnent 5, directed attention to page 4, line 5, and suggested
that Anendnent 5 be made conceptual, to cover any other places
in the bill where "billing address” shoul d go.

CHAIR VWEYHRAUCH stated, "So noted for the record, to make it
consistent; I'll just wite that on the anendnent."”

Nunmber 1766

MR RUDIG in response to a question from Representative
Berkowitz, offered his understanding that an access line is "any
line you can dial 911 from" He noted that the definition could
be found in AS 29.135.137.

Nunber 1824

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ sought clarification as foll ows:

I"'m sort of seeing three schenes that are energing
here, and this is why | wish this was over in the RCA
Access lines - pretty much every phone gets a charge.
Statenent nmeans if you bundle it, that could be like a
bi g bundli ng. And, | guess, in between those two is
per address. So, if you want to do it [so that]
everybody pays based on their phone, it's access |ine.
If you want to do it ... only per custoner, you would
do it [by] statenent, because whether [or not] you're

t he biggest conpany in the world, you can get one
st at enent . And if you want to do sonething in
bet ween, you'd do address. Is that right?

MR RUDIG offered his belief that it is the intent of the
sponsor that each residential nenber who has multiple lines in
hi s/ her home pays one enhanced 911 surcharge. A business wth
multiple lines would pay a surcharge on each line.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM added, "That's correct - up to 100."

REPRESENTATIVE BERKONTZ clarified that the distinction is
bet ween residential and commercial, but he said commercial could
still be on an access |ine basis.

MR. RUDI G said he believes that's correct.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that the discussion is in regard
to phone |ines, not phones thenselves. He said, "You nay have
10 phones in your house ... accessing one line, or you nmay have
three lines."

Nunmber 1896

MR. G BBS proffered that the borough also pays a charge per
access l'ine for mai nt ai ni ng t he dat abase i nformation.
Presently, that charge is approximately 18 cents per l|ine, which
cones off the top of the 75-cent surcharge per access line. He
said the expectation is that charge will rise as new [automatic
|l ocation identification (ALI)] database nmaintenance agreenents
are made.

MR GBBS stated a concern regarding billing statenents for
which the revenues nmay be inproperly distributed anong the
muni ci palities. For exanple, in the Kenai Peninsula Borough,
many residents from outside of the cities - but still

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 30, 2004



technically in the borough - wuse a billing address at post
office boxes inside the city. M. G bbs suggested that there
may have to be a better nmechanism for distributing the costs and
collecting the revenue associated with delivering the services.

Nunmber 1939

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there is any distinction made if a
busi ness is operated out of a hone.

MR RUDIG said he doesn't know. He surmsed that it would
depend upon the | ocal exchange conpani es, because those
conpanies have different rates for residential and comerci al
[l1ines].

Number 1974
MR d BBS sai d:

Renmenber t hat t el ephone  conpani es only provide
tel ecomuni cations; they don't inquire as to the
pur pose of the occupancy. Qur jurisdiction would be
severely challenged, in terns of resources, to ...
conpare telephone subscriber records wth business
| icenses or building permts, to determ ne the type of
occupancy. So, we would have no way of determ ning
whether it's a residential line or business |ocated
wi thin a residence.

MR. RUDI G related that he has been told that tel ephone conpanies
can nmake that distinction.

Number 2018

STEVE THOWSON, Mayor, Gty of Fairbanks, enphasized that the
city supports HB 461, Version Z, and the amendnents that were
j ust adopt ed. He said, "W think this is really going to help
pay for that energency dispatch and phone-taking services." He
noted that Version Z would replace |anguage, which would result
in the city being able to enhance its 911 system and pay for
t hat service. He added that he thinks it's inportant for and
will help the entire state. He thanked Representative Holm and
M. Rudig for their efforts in introducing HB 461.

Nunber 2061

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 30, 2004



JIM HARPRI NG, Menber, National Emergency Nunbering Association
(NENA), directed the commttee's attention to page 4, line 7.
He nmentioned the difference between residential billing
addresses versus large, industrial areas, in ternms of revenue.
He offered an exanple of a hospital where there would be
multiple Iines, but only one billing address. He observed that
that concept doesn't "appear to be any place in the current
[bill version]."

MR RUDIG stated that it would be the purview of the commttee
whether to [allow] nore nunicipal control regardi ng exenptions.

Number 2156

Bl LL DOOLI TTLE, Project Manager, Minicipality of Anchorage, told
the commttee that he nanages the upgraded 911 system He
stated his support of HB 461, because he said it would show
significant inprovenments for 911 prograns, statew de. He

of fered to answer questions.
Nunmber 2188

GAI L VO GTLANDER, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral - Statew de
Section Supervisor, Torts and W rker’s Conpensation Section,
Cvil Division (Anchorage), Departnent of Law, stated that if a
definitional section is added for energency services dispatch,
it needs to be consistent and have | anguage that ties it to the
service, rather than who provides that service.

M5. VO GTLANDER directed attention to page 2, lines 16-22, [text
provided previously], and said that she supports having a
definition that "cross-references whatever definition is adopted
for Title 29."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked Ms. Voigtlander to look at the bill again
when "the next commttee substitute of this bill comes out," to
ensure that it addresses those issues.

Number 2283

JAMES R JACKSON JR, Attorney at Law, GCeneral Communications
I ncorporated (GCl), stated that GCI supports a bill that can
help with the provision of E-911 service. He noted, however
that there are issues in [Version Z] that need to be addressed.
First, he enphasized that it's inportant that the bill ensure

equal charges between w reless and wreline phones. The current
proposed |anguage, he noted, says that the nunicipality "may"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 30, 2004



i npose a charge. He explained that since the I|anguage 1is
perm ssive, a municipality could choose to charge only wireline,
and not wireless, or vice versa. He suggested that |anguage be
added to require that a mnunicipality that elects to inpose a
charge nust inpose the sanme charge on both wireless and wireline
phones. In response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch, he
offered his belief that that |anguage could be added to Section
4.

Number 2350

MR RUDIG responded that it wuld be the purview of the
commttee to make that decision. He added, "W may want to stay
back to local control and |obby that at the nunicipality |eve
when they make the decision to inpose a surcharge on both."

MR.  JACKSON, returning to his testinony, stated, "W are,
frankly, quite bothered by the fact that there is no cap
what soever on the charge, at this point."

TAPE 04-74, SIDE B
Nunmber 2368

MR. JACKSON nentioned the possibility that sone jurisdictions
may try to inpose charges of over $6 per line. He surmsed that
that's what would be needed in Kodiak and perhaps Kenai to

recover all the costs, "even if today they don't think they
would go that high." He indicated that charges that go that
hi gh woul d create a substantial issue in inposing "this |evel of
cost on tel ephone service." He posed: "I guess we have to, to

sone extent, question the wunderlying premse that this is a
charge which is appropriate to collect entirely from tel ephone
users.” He said it's not that the tel ephone system is inposing
these costs on society. In sone ways, he explained, it's the
opposite of that; the tel ephone system enables a val uable public
safety service to be provided. He continued as follows:

Certainly, sone of the costs are related to a per line
basi s. And | think M. Gbbs, from Kenai, nentioned
that they pay 18 cents per access line to nmaintain the

dat abase. So, certainly, there are sone costs that
are still on a per access line basis, but at the same
time, in large part, this isn't just sinply [a]

val uabl e safety service, which our society has deened
desirable, that should be paid for through general tax
revenue.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 30, 2004



So, we believe that a cap should be inposed. The
anount of noney that can be collected from
approximately ... 600,000 wreline and wreless
tel ephones across the state -- you really start
tal king about normal suns of noney, if you re talking
about charges that start being [$3-$5]. We have, in
the past, supported the versions of the bill that have
had caps of $1.

As to the cap, we do think it's a good idea to have a
limt on the nunber of charges that apply to a user
that has nore than 100 access lines, such as exists

under present | aw. It would be, for instance,
hospitals and that type [of] thing that was nentioned
previ ously.

MR, JACKSON, regarding the previous question regarding whether
or not telephone [conpanies] distinguish between residential and
busi ness users, stated, "It's certain that we do try to."
Peopl e who run busi nesses from honme should be paying a business
rate.

Nunber 2253

MR. RUDI G nentioned the "magic nunber” and trying to figure out
what it is. He indicated that the energency dispatch service
surcharge system and related costs could change from year to
year and the legislature should revisit the issue each year.

Number 2210

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated that one of the problens to rectify
through the bill is that the control is not at the municipal
| evel, because that mnmakes it difficult for nunicipalities to
function.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked M. Jackson to "provide |anguage" to the
comittee.

Nunber 2142

JOHN FULLENW DER, Fire Chief, Minicipality of Anchorage, stated
that when people in Anchorage call 911, they expect that the

call wll be answered and the services they need wll be
provided right away. He stated, "This bill goes a |long ways in
allowing us to do just that. In its current form it will allow

| ocal government to place the expense of operation and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 30, 2004



mai nt enance squarely where it belongs, and that is, of course,
on the user." He said Representative Holm and M. Rudig have
done an excellent job with HB 461.

MR. FULLENW DER noted that there still is an issue regarding the
PBX system He added, "However, | believe that yesterday that
was covered, using the capitol as an exanple." He noted another
issue in regard to tel ephone conpani es and addi ng surcharges to
the bill. He said, "No doubt they receive a little heat
concerning these charges, but this bill, by allowng Ioca

government to set the surcharge, should alleviate sone of that
concern.” M. Fullenw der encouraged the conmttee to nove [HB
461] out of conmmittee.

Number 2083

MARK MEW President, Alaska Chapter, National Enmergency Nunber
Association (NENA), regarding a previously stated concern of M.
G bbs over whether or not 911 surcharge noney could be used for
a CAD [conputer aided dispatch] system suggested |ooking at the
definition of the 911 system in existing statute. He said
perm ssible costs are listed there. He continued as foll ows:

We changed that in the statute - I'm going to say it
was in '99 or 2000, at the sane time we added the
wi rel ess surcharge for the first time - and expanded
what was in the definition of a 911 system
specifically to cover CAD systens. At that point in

tinme, we weren't conceiving of separate dispatch and
911 centers, necessarily, but that was our thought at
the tinme, and it may be that that definition is
already there and in place to allow for those
expenses.

MR. MEW said he's heard a lot of discussion during the previous

testimony regardi ng whether billing should be based upon a phone
bill, an address, the telephone itself, or the |ocal exchange
access line. He said he thinks there is some confusion about

definitions, and he suggested that "we" may be trying to solve a
nonexi stent problem He noted that NENA, on the national |evel,

has set standards. He revealed that an access line is not the
sane as "a telephone set at the end.” He explained, "You can
have a few access lines and a lot of sets.” He continued as
fol |l ows:
The national standards are to base your billing on
access lines for the purpose of landline - wreline,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- April 30, 2004



and on telephone nunbers, for [the] purpose of

Wi rel ess. And | think we're not the first ones to
have this debate, and | think 1'd encourage you to
consider the national standards; they're well thought
out, well published, and everyone understands them

around the country.
Nunber 1936

When NENA started working on |egislation about a year
ago, we held our first neetings with the House in
Cct ober, before the session started - that was with a
different commttee. But over the course of the |ast
few nonths, NENA has identified nine itens that we
believe need addressing in our statutes. W filed our

version of the bill - that was [HB] 499 - and |ater
tried to get [HB] 499 and [HB] 461 merged. | commend
everybody's work on this. A lot of things have
happened in the last 24 hours; a lot of concerns we
had yesterday have been addressed, and | do hope the
bill noves in sone formtoday.

| would like to point out, though, that of the nine
things that NENA has tried to acconplish, this bill
takes up three of them head on and deals with them

The other ... five ... this bill doesn't conceive of
at all, and it seens to be m ssing around the edges on
the | ocal exchange access line issue. I think the
state needs to deal with the additional issues. I
don't know if we'll get it done in the Senate, or if
we'll have to do it next year, but remaining to be
acconplished [is] dealing with the issue of phase two
cost recovery. That's nostly, | think, going to be an
industry issue, and if we don't deal wth it, | think
there'll be quite a bit of friction and a few battles

in the future

Nunber 1900

MR. MEW nentioned "prepaid wreless.” He noted that he had
heard today that wreless resellers is being added to the
| anguage of Version Z. He said he doesn't know if that would
cover prepaid wreless, or not. He added that it seens it

woul d, but he doesn't know if there is a collection nechanism
there. He said the issue of statew de point of contact has not
been addressed. If it is not addressed, the state will not be
eligible for significant federal funding, which wll be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 30, 2004



avai |l abl e soon. He indicated that the issue of unincorporated
bor oughs has been addressed.

MR MEW said the last item he would address is the private

switch ALI. He continued as foll ows:
M. Fullenwder ... used the capitol exanple. | think
the situation is worse than that. |'"ve been told - |
can't confirm it - that you could work on the North
Sl ope, call 911, pass out, and the Anchorage Police
Department would get the call and ... would send first
responders to Alyeska [Pipeline Service Conpany's]
offices ... in Anchorage. VWhat we would like is the

ability of local jurisdictions to be able to enact
| egislation, so that we can correct those issues.
Right now, the situation is you could spend all the
noney you wanted on building a functioning 911 system
and ot her people could buy services that, essentially,
woul d negat e what you' ve done.

MR. MEW said the aforenentioned issues are ones that he hopes

[the legislature] will address in the future, and he said he
hopes that "the bill noves forward in sone formtoday."
Nunmber 1845

ALLEN STOREY, Lieutenant, Central Ofice, Division of Al aska
State Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), expressed
exci tenment about the provisions of Section 1, on page 2, [lines
16-20], because the addition of that |anguage wll provide
"protection to the state that C wi | be enjoyed by
municipalities.” He indicated that these are functions that the
state already perforns. In response to a question from
Representative Holm he confirmed that the bill, in its current
form would have a zero fiscal note.

Nunmber 1806

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that public testinony was cl osed. He
mentioned a letter of intent.

Number 1794
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the second line in the letter
of intent and asked, "Are we talking about [the] D vision of

Honel and Security, wthin the Departnment of Mlitary and
Veterans' Affairs?”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 30, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH suggested that "the Division of Honeland
Security” could be left out, in order to keep the |I|anguage
generic.

MR RUDI G said that would be fine.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that "we sinply say, 'It is
the intent of the legislature that the Coordinator be
established to coordinate'."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON added, "to coordinate and facilitate".
Number 1682

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified that the anmendnent to the letter of
intent would read as foll ows:

It is the intent of the legislature that a state 911
Coordi nator be established to coordi nate.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to the
anendnent to the letter of intent. There being none, it was so
or der ed.

Number 1660

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH renpbved his previously stated objection to
Ver si on Z.

Nunber 1649

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSHB 461, Version 23-
LS1633\Z, Cook, 4/28/04, as anended, out of commttee, wth
i ndi vi dual recommendations, attached fiscal note, and the
[anended] letter of intent. There being no objection, CSHB
461(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Committee.

HB 536- PFUND APPLI CATI ON DEADLI NES FOR M LI TARY

Nunmber 1628

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 536, "An Act relating to applications for
permanent fund dividends by certain individuals serving in the
arnmed forces; and providing for an effective date.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 30, 2004



[ Before the commttee was CSHB 536( M.V). ]
Nunmber 1588

JON BITTNER, Staff to Representative Cheryll Heinze, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 536 on behalf of Representative
Hei nze, sponsor. He stated that HB 536 was drafted in response
to several calls received by Representative Heinze fromthose in
the armed services serving in lrag and Afghanistan, who were
either shipping out or oversees in a war zone during the
application period for the Al aska permanent fund divided (PFD).
The proposed legislation would allow an extension of the
application period for nmenbers of the arned services who receive

"hostile fire imm nent danger pay." The bill would allow those
people 90 days, after getting out of that situation where
comuni cations are inaccessible, to apply. | f passed, the bil

woul d take effect 90 days after passage and woul d be retroactive
to 2003.

Nunber 1525

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH questioned the retroactivity date.

MVR. BITTNER said the sponsor wants the bill to apply
specifically to nenbers of the arnmed services who "are serving
in the last Iragi war and in Afghanistan.” In response to a
guestion from Representative Lynn, he said the bill would stil

apply in the future.

Nunber 1476

REPRESENTATI VE CHERYLL HEINZE, Al aska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 536, explained that the first group of marines to
Baghdad did not receive their PFDs. She offered an exanple.
Nunber 1431

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt Amendnent 1, [to add a] Section
4, which would provide that "this Act sunsets on Decenber 31
2004" .

Nunber 1427

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected. He stated, "This is going to

go into permanent law and, unfortunately, ... countries,
including this country, seem to find thenselves in harms way

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 30, 2004



fromtine to time - not just this year." He said young people
have no choice about going [to war] and should "receive the
protection of this law "

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN concurred with Representative G uenberg.
Nunmber 1383

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed concern regarding allow ng
people to apply for PFDs retroactively and said he thinks the
Per manent Fund Dividend Division should be consulted.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated a point of order; he suggested
Representative Seaton's concerns were not expressly to the point
of the anendnent.

Number 1341

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG w thdrew [his objection to Amendnent
1].

Number 1304

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Representative Heinze if she
supports Anendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE i ndi cated that she can see both sides, and
suggested that M. Barton, Permanent Fund Dividend Division,
coul d address the question.

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH expl ained that he had proposed Anendnent 1 to
correlate with the previously stated intent of the bill to cover
those serving in Irag and Afghani stan.

REPRESENTATI VE HEINZE reiterated that the |anguage could go

ei t her way. She stated that she believes in the nmen and wonen
who fight [for the United States], and [w thout Anendnent 1],
the bill would cover those serving in future wars.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that this is an inportant issue.
He explained, "Because if you're only going to do it for two
years, this should go in a tenporary Act."”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that the sponsor

had indicated that "they've cleared this situation up so it
won't be happening in the future.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HEINZE said there is hope that it won't happen
again, but it could. She noted that Ms. Barton had tal ked about
spendi ng sone noney to get the nessage to these folks that "this
is out there."

Nunber 1212

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he feels strongly about this
i ssue. He explained, "I'm not a great fan of expanding the
permanent fund [dividend] to everybody, but these are people who
need it."

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH asked Representative Heinze if "individuals in
this situation” couldn't get power of attorney.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE answered that they coul d.
Nunber 1171

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his wunderstanding that it 1is
possible to apply for a PFD online. He asked if part of the
probl em that Representative Heinze is addressing had to do wth
del ayed nmail .

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE responded, "That is exactly the first
thing that we [ooked at, is ... if this is online, why was this
young marine not able [to get his PFD]." That marine had access
to nothing, not even a place to sleep.

Number 1118

SHARON BARTON, Director, Central Ofice, Permanent Fund D vi dend
Di vision, Departnment of Revenue, in response to the issue of
whet her or not to have a sunset clause, said it would appear
that [the United States] is involved in "short-term events" wth
the mlitary, but it wwuld be a policy decision for the
commttee to make.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he has been in war, and he
enphasi zed that those in war do not know where they wll be at
any given tine. He opined that [the legislature] should be
going out of its way to help [those in the service].

Nunber 1060
A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Holm Seaton, and
Weyhrauch voted in favor of Amendnent 1. Represent ati ves

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- April 30, 2004



G uenberg, and Lynn voted against it. Therefore, Amendnent 1
was adopted by a vote of 3-2.

Nunber 1014

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to report CSHB 536(M.V), as anended
out of commttee, [with individual recomendations and the
attached fiscal notes].

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if there could be reconsideration of
the previously recorded roll call vote.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the current nption before the
committee would first have to be w t hdrawn.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked Representative Holm what he would like to
do.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM sai d he was maintaining his notion.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to noving CSHB
536(M.V), as anended, out of commttee, [with individua

recommendations and the attached fiscal notes]. There being
none, CSHB 536( STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs
St andi ng Conmittee.

HB 557- LOBBYI ST PROHI BI TI ONS

Nunmber 0930

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BI LL NO. 557, "An Act regarding |obbyist prohibitions."

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH st ated, "W have CS for HB 557, Version U This
is a wrk draft.” [No notion was nmade at this tine to adopt the
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 557, Version 23-LS1921\U,
Craver, 4/26/04, as a work draft].

Number 0920

REPRESENTATI VE CHERYLL HEINZE, Al aska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 557, stated that the bill would protect people
| egislators, and legislative enployees from threats and or
bullying, in relation to their testinony before a commttee.

She said 99 percent of |obbyists are sophisticated people;
peopl e who are wel cone into her office and whose perspective and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- April 30, 2004



know edge she val ues. She indicated that it is only a few
| obbyi sts who push the envel ope on their code of ethics.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE said she had |ooked into the | obbyists’
code of ethics and found "it was virtually nonexistent.” She
noted that in working with [the Alaska Public Ofices Conm ssion
(APOC)], she has diligently tried to keep the |anguage of the

bill specific and "very narrow.” She enphasized that she views
| obbyi sts as a valuable part of the [l|egislative] process. She
al so enphasized that "it is the process that we nust
collectively protect.” Representative Heinze, [in regard to
bullying], stated that intimdation and fear of retribution
wor ks. She said she strongly believes that there should be
freedom of speech wthout retribution; Ilegislators should be
able to introduce bills and follow them through, w thout fear of
retribution. Furthernore, she said that any person who
testifies before a commttee or via teleconference should be
allowed to do so, wthout fear of retribution. She st at ed,
"Just as there is sanctity in the court room there nust be
sanctity in the legislative process."” She said it is up to
| egislators [to protect that sanctity]. She said the

| egi sl ative code of ethics was used as a guide, as well as "sone
| anguage of sonme of the other states.”

Number 0700
HAROLD HEINZE, testifying on behalf of hinself, told the

commttee that he is a 30-year resident of Al aska. He reveal ed
t hat he has testified before nunicipal assenbl i es, t he

| egi slature, and the U S. Congress. He nentioned an Associ at ed
Press (AP) article <carried by the Anchorage Daily News,
regarding [HB 557]. He said he was surprised not to see
reflected in that article, any outrage by |egislators. He said
it seens to himthat this issue goes far beyond free speech. He
stated, "Wien | read this article, | sort of felt | was
[hearing] a judge in a courtroom saying, 'Well, it was only a

little bit of jury tanpering - nothing really to worry about.'"
He indicated that it's hard enough for nost folks to testify,
wi t hout having any feeling that something could happen to them
for expressing their thoughts to the |egislature. He stated
that he's not certain that the bill goes far enough, in terns of
penal ties. He rated this issue on par with the seriousness of
jury tanpering in a courtroom He concluded, "I think that's
the way you should |ook at the process here and how it would
inpact the people that are before vyou." He thanked the
commttee for the opportunity to present his views openly.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- April 30, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said sone l|legislators don't call the press to
comment, so, the fact that there was no outrage from | egislators
is not that surprising. He also noted that no one [from the
press] called him Notw t hstandi ng that, he said, "I think we
share your concern.”

Nunmber 0460

TAMW KEMPTON, Regul ation of Lobbying, Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), Departnent of Admnistration, stated that,
currently, the conm ssion does not have a position on HB 557

and it has submtted a zero fiscal note. She said there may be
a fiscal inpact on the commssion as a result of "this amendnent
to the lobbying law'; however, it would be inpossible at this
point to quantify what that inpact m ght be. She explained that
if there are dozens of conplaints filed, there will be a strong
fiscal inpact.

M5. KEMPTON continued, by reading from her witten testinony
[included in the commttee packet], as foll ows:

The fiscal note we submitted was based on the original
version of HB 557, not on the commttee substitute.
The original version did not include civil penalties
for violations of Section 121 and current |aw does not
provide civil penalties for such violations. The only

penalties currently are crimnal. Thus, if a
violation did occur, the comm ssion would be required
to conduct a full investigation, hold a hearing, nmake

a determnation, and then, if a violation was found,
report the violation to the Departnment of Law, who
then would nmake a determ nation whether or not to
pr oceed. This is a tinme-consuning and expensive
process.

The comittee substitute gi ves t he commi ssi on
authority to inpose civil penalties against a |obbyist
who violates any of the provisions of AS 24.45.121 and
this is a very positive change. The conmi ssion wll
be able to <conduct an investigation and, if a
violation is found, they would suspend the violator's
| obbyi st registration and/or inpose a fine of not nore
t han $5, 000. The ability to inpose a civil penalty

will enable the conmission to stop the behavior nore
quickly and with less cost than inposing a crimnal
penal ty. And the crimnal penalties are still

avai l abl e for the npbst egregi ous cases.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- April 30, 2004



We do, however, have a concern with this bill, and
that is that it's not going to acconplish its intent.
Because of the change to the |obbying statute | ast
year, an enployee |obbyist is not required to register
until he or she has |obbied for 40 hours in a 30-day
peri od. So, an enployee lobbying for his or her
enpl oyer, who engages in this type of behavior, or
thinks they mght, wll sinply not register. And the
comm ssion has no authority over enployee |obbyists
who have not yet triggered the requirenent to
regi ster. Thi s | egi sl ation wi || pr event a
prof essi onal | obbyist from engaging in such behavior
Presently, we have 60 professional |obbyists and 66
enpl oyee | obbyists [registered]. Last year at this
time ... we had 72 professional |obbyists and 114
enpl oyee | obbyi st s.

M5. KEMPTON offered to answer questions fromthe commttee.

Nunber 0204
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 3, [beginning
on] line 8 [of Version U, which read as foll ows:

(i) wll take or withhold or will cause

another person to take or wthhold a |egislative,
adm nistrative, or political action, including support
for or opposition to a bill, enploynent, nom nations,
or appointnents; in this sub-subparagraph, "politica
action" has the neaning given in AS 24.60.990; or

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in regard to this |anguage, asked if not
supporting a person in an election would be a crimnal offense.

M5. KEMPTON said she has not read Version U and is not famliar
with the term "political action”™ and how it is defined, because
the definition is in the legislative ethics code, not the
| obbyi sts' code.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stated for the record that the commttee is
"speaking to" Version U.

Nunmber 0085

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that the definition is [within] AS
24.60.990, and read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- April 30, 2004



(13) "political action”™ means conduct in which
public officials, including legislators or |egislative
enpl oyees, use their official position or political
contacts to exercise influence on state and | ocal
governnment enployees or entities; it includes but is
not limted to endorsing and pledging support or
actively supporting a legislative natter, a nom nee,
or a candidate for public office;

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said, "I wonder how you would hold
sonebody accountable for that as a |obbyist, wunder this ...
rule.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said political action is what takes place
in the | egislature.

TAPE 04-75, SIDE A
Number 0001

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questioned again whether political support
woul d be a violation.

Number 0039

M5. KEMPTON responded, "Lobbyists aren't allowed to support
candidates, in ternms of giving political contributions, and
they're not allowed to fundraise or serve on their canpaign.
And they can only give contribution to those candidates ... in
the district in which they're eligible to vote.™

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that what [lobbyists] can do is talk to
political action commttees, groups, or i ndi viduals and
encourage support and <contributions to one candidate over
anot her.

Nunber 0094
REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE renmarked that she has tried to keep the
bill narrow, so that it only applies to "testinmony in a
comttee.”
Nunber 0132
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said, "If there was an inplication on

record, that it mght involve sone political action, then they
woul d be in violation."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- April 30, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said, "You could inply a political threat to
oppose one bill, in exchange for a vote for another, and that
happens a lot."

Nunber 0182

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded, "Your exanple is good, and
especially if they are substantive issues that have political
ram fications that would be legitimate for a |obbyist to conment
on."

Number 0194

JON BITTNER, Staff to Representative Cheryll Heinze, Al aska
State Legislature, sponsor, clarified that the provisions of the
bill would only kick in if a threat was used to influence the
way soneone testifies or whether or not he/she testifies.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL indicated that "hidden in the |anguage"
is the problem that would exist in substantiating such a threat.
He indicated that APOC would have to be involved and it may be
one person's word agai nst the other's.

MR. BITTNER of fered his understanding that a civil hearing would
be hel d. He said the burden of proof would not be as heavy as
it is in crimnal Jlaw, although it would still be fairly
substanti al .

Number 0331

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked [about a situation in which] the
bullying or intimdation wasn't "solely in the mnd of the
person that's being intimdated or bullied.”

MR. BITTNER said that although he agrees with Representative
Seaton, the sponsor felt that "by tying it to the way you
testify before a committee ... would make it a little nore clear
- a little nore substantial." He added, "You can be bullied,
but it would be difficult to think you were being bullied to
change your testinmony, wthout some sort of proof."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he doesn't see the narrowness of

"this." He directed attention to [page 3], lines 14-16, which
read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- April 30, 2004



(B) bully or intimdate with the intent of
influencing a legislator, legislative enployee, or
nmenber of the public in regard to taking a position on
an i ssue, voting, testifying, or |obbying.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said, "This is not narrow on testinony to
a conmttee. | mean, this is any time that they were going to

talk to a legislator, and you don't want them to say
sonmething on that. And if they felt intimdated, that would be
a charge to this ethics violation, as | see it." He suggested
asking for APCC s opi nion.

Nunmber 0452

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how he woul d defend hinself if he were
a | obbyi st who was accused.

Nunber 0482

PAMELA LaBOLLE, President, Al aska State Chanber of Conmerce
(ASCC), indicated that the language is so broad that if a
| obbyi st were to state his/her disagreenment with sonmething, for
exanpl e, he/she may be open to civil fine and lose the ability
to | obby.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked, "Have you ever appeared before a
commttee and have a |legislator do a variety of bullying you?"

M5. LaBOLLE answered yes. She noted that in the aforenentioned
article, she did say that legislators have a greater ability to
bully | obbyists than | obbyists do |egislators.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON i ndicated that the aforenentioned | anguage
on page 3, lines 14-16, would include |obbyists arguing wth
| obbyi sts.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE said there are bullies in school yards

but they are not allowed to continue their bullying. She
remar ked that sone of those bullies grow up to bully as adults.
She said she wants "those sideboards,” and indicated that she
wants commttee input and also to see the bill noved out of
comittee.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stated that he had made a commtnent to M.

LaBolle to hear HB 557 and to "ask if there was a notion to nove
this bill today." He told Representative Heinze that it was her

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 36- April 30, 2004



call whether she wanted himto ask for a notion, or to hold the
bill for further study.

Nunber 0754

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated that he is not prepared to vote to
nove the bill today. He said he appreciates what Representative
Heinze is trying to do; however, he stated that if a person has
a serious disagreenent with sonebody, one person may think they
are being intimdated. He said he doesn't know "how we could
get down to proving that, even when it's in testinony before a
commttee. " He revealed that he has had sone heated exchanges
with people during testinony, because "we got caught in the
nonent of a discussion.” He admitted he has even gotten angry
w th people who have not |iked his position.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked Representative Heinze again whether or not
she wanted the commttee to make a notion to nove the bill

REPRESENTATI VE HEINZE clarified that the bill is not about "he
said, she said"; there has to be a "nountain of evidence." She
credited APOCC as being smart enough to know that. She expressed
her wllingness to work with each nenber of the commttee to
tighten up the |anguage of the bill as it noved to the House
floor.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH reiterated his question to Representative
Hei nze, and asked if there was a notion to nove HB 557.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL reiterated his recommendation to hold the

bill, because the issue is a huge one. He indicated that the
bill needed to be narrowed down.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE said, "I can do that."

Nurmber 0900

CHAI R  WEYHRAUCH, in response to Representative Coghill
clarified that his intention had been to take action on the
bill, but he wants to | eave that decision up to the sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE reiterated her idea of working with each
of the conmmttee nenbers before the bill "hits the [House]
floor."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH sai d, "That sounds |like commttee work."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -37- April 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he thinks the conmttee is "nibbling
around the edge of a serious issue," and he has problens wth
the way the bill is currently witten.

Number 0068

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH i ndi cated his intention to hear HB 557 again.

[ HB 557 was heard and hel d. ]

HB 460- ALLOMBLE ABSENCES AND PFDS

Number 0985

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 460, "An Act relating to absences to provide care
for certain relatives for purposes of permanent fund dividend
eligibility; and providing for an effective date."

[From this point forward, the commttee substitute (CS) for HB
460, Version 23-LS1700\D, Cook, 4/1/04, was treated as adopted
and before the commttee as a work draft.]

Number 0999
AURCRA HAUKE, Staff to Representative Beth Kerttula, Alaska

State Legislature, testifying on behalf of Representative
Kerttula, sponsor, explained that the intent of the original

bill was to allow people to provide care for critically ill or
infjured famly nenbers, no mtter where that famly nenber
becane ill. She indicated that when the sponsor discussed the
bill with the Permanent Fund Dividend Division, it was pointed
out that the |language nmay inply that [the individual started out
being ill inside of the state and then had to go outside of the

state for care].

M5. HAUKE directed attention to page 3, beginning on line 9,
whi ch read as foll ows:

(d) For purposes of (a)(6) and (7) [(a)(7)] of
this section, "fam |y nenber” neans a person who is
(1) legally related to the individual
t hrough marriage or guardi anship; or
(2) t he i ndi vidual's si bl i ng, par ent,
grandparent, son, daughter, grandson, granddaughter,
uncl e, aunt, niece, nephew, or first cousin.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 38- April 30, 2004



Nunber 1115

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, "So, the intent of this is if there
is an Al askan who has sonmeone who's a non- Al askan who's injured,
they can l|leave for how long and still continue to collect
di vi dends?"

M5. HAUKE offered her wunderstanding that the length of tine
would be the sane as for any other allowable absence. She
guessed five years.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said, "So, it's under the 10-year tine
frame, so it starts in 2008, if that's the cutoff that you're
tal king about." In response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, he clarified that the 10-year w ndow "starts in
2008, " but is not "from 2008."

Nunber 1202

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if "critical life-threatening” is
defined in statute.

M5. HAUKE said she doesn't know.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he has a problem wth the
broadness of the |anguage regarding the definition of a famly

nmenber .

M5. HAUKE noted that the sponsor chose to | eave the | anguage as
it currently is in statute.

Nunber 1289
REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noted that he doesn't have a problem
with the |anguage, " [ PARENT, SPOUSE, SI BLI NG, CHI LD, OR
STEPCHI LD] ".
Nunber 1303

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said he has an anendnent that would change the
sunset to "January 1, 2006", so that the l|egislature has the
opportunity to "conme back and look at it."

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated that he thinks the |anguage is broad.
He questioned the inclusion of "first cousin".

Number 1355

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 39- April 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to a request by Chair
Weyhrauch, noved [to adopt the conmmttee substitute (CS) for HB
460, Version 23-LS1700, Cook, 4/1/04, as work draft].

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH obj ect ed.

Nunber 1385

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 1, as foll ows:
On page 2, lines 10-11:
Delete "fam |y nenber”

Ret ai n " [ PARENT, SPOUSE, SI BLI NG, CHI LD, OR
STEPCHI LD] "

On page 3, lines 8-14:
Del ete Section 2 of the bil

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH obj ected to Anmendnent 1.
Nunber 1394

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if a grandparent is considered a
parent. He al so asked, "And what about an aunt or an uncl e?"”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answered, "No, it's not." He clarified
that "the terns are used differently here.”

Nunmber 1406

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recalled a floor debate |ast vyear
regarding this issue. He said he thinks the commttee is
getting into sonething that is not proposed in the bill. He
turned attention to [page 2], line 11, which read, "critical
life-threatening illness or injury", and he said he is not
certain whether "critical life-threatening" applies to "injury".
REPRESENTATI VE ~ GRUENBERG clarified t hat "critical life-
threateni ng" would nodify both "illness" or "injury".

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he would like to add "grandparent".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would consider that a friendly
amendnent [to Amendnent 1].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -40- April 30, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified that the anmendnent to Amendnent 1
woul d add "grandparent” to the list [on page 2, lines 10-11,
text previously provided].

Nunmber 1498

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the commttee realizes the
fol | ow ng:

W are no longer talking about an Al askan who was
injured; we are talking about soneone who is injured
who is Qutside, and we have an Al askan who goes out to
care for them Now, if ... it's a [critical] life-
threatening illness, and they becone a dependent on
that person, then, under other portions, that person
may ... - having never been here - be eligible for a
[ permanent fund dividend (PFD)], because they're a
dependent of the Alaskan who's out on allowable
absence. If ... we create this as an ... extended
al l owabl e absence, anyone who's a dependent upon that
person can also receive a pernmanent fund dividend
check.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that that's a good point and
may be a problemin current |aw.

Nunmber 1533

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he has kids Qutside, but they don't
receive a pernmanent fund.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH cl arified that Representative Seaton had pointed
out that "we're opening it up for everybody." He said, for
exanple, "Wiy don't we just give permanent fund dividends to
every relation to the nenber who lives in Al aska?"

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he doesn't think the amendnent does
t hat .

Nunber 1553

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON cl ari fi ed:
The way this works, if you look at the statutes as
what's all owed: If you're a dependent, such as the

mlitary, if you have children that are dependent on
sonebody that's on active duty that rotated up here,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -41- April 30, 2004



was here, and |eaves, all of those dependents are
acconpanying a person ... that's got an allowable
absence. And so, they are wunder the acconpanying
al | owabl e absence person - the person on active duty.

And ny question here is that we're going to have the
sane thing where we're going to have sonebody with an
al l owabl e absence, and a dependent on that allowable
absence, and then qualify for the PFD.

[ HB 460 was heard and hel d. ]
Nunber 1605
The neeting was recessed at 10:09 a.m to a call of the chair.

TAPE 04-76, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH called the neeting back to order at 2:08 p.m
Present at the call back to order were Representatives Holm
Seat on, Lynn, G uenberg, and Weyhrauch

SJR 25- FLOODI NG AND ERGCSI ON CONTROL ASSI STANCE

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of HB 327.]
Nunber 1040

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO 25, Recommending that certain
federal funding restrictions be eased so that nore villages in
Al aska would qualify for assistance relating to flooding and
er osi on.

Number 0059
HAVEN HARRIS, Staff to Senator Donny O son, Alaska State
Legislature, on behalf of Senator d son, sponsor, read the
sponsor statenent, as follows:

Senate Joint Resolution 25 is a resolution requesting

the Arny Corp of Engineers ease their cost benefit

anal ysis for projects in rural Al aska.

Senat or O son has proposed this resolution in response
to many concerns voiced by ny constituents wth

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -42- April 30, 2004



regards to the erosion and flooding problens that

pl ague Western Al aska. Currently, many of the
villages in Wstern Alaska are not receiving the
assistance needed for the protection of Ilife and
property.

On Novenber 8, 2003, a wnter storm hit western
Al aska. This storm caused considerable danmage to
Unal akl eet, Shishmaref, and sonme of None's surrounding
ar eas. Wiile the governor has declared a state of

di sast er because of this storm the continued
effect[s] of erosion on the villages of Al aska are not
going to be solved by energency disaster declarations.
A nore conprehensive, coordinated effort is required
by the Arny Corps of Engineers and other federal and
stat e agenci es.

Senator O son and our office respectfully urge your
support for this resolution to focus attention on this
serious problem

MR. HARRI S noted that although the sponsor statenment talks about
erosion in Wstern Alaska, it is a serious problem in other
parts of the state, as well; therefore, the "BE |IT RESOLVED'
section of the resolution [on page 2, lines 14-18] includes al
comunities in the state.

Nurmber 0194

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM for the record, characterized HB 327 as a
conpanion bill to SJR 25, because it also deals wth cost
benefits analyses that [are not economically feasible]. He

expressed his appreciation for SJR 25 and said he hopes it can
be supported.

Nunber 0265

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, [in regard to the section of the bill
addressing sending "COPIES' of the resolution, on page 2, lines
19-26], suggested that the copies be sent by electronic

transm ssion to avoi d possi bl e problens of sending themby mail.
Number 0306

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report SJR 25 out of conmttee
with individual recommendations [and the acconpanying fiscal

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -43- April 30, 2004



not es] . There being no objection, SIJR 25 was reported out of
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

SB 227- MUNI Cl PAL  ELECTI ONS

Nunmber 0335

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the |ast order of business was CS
FOR SENATE BILL NO 227(STA) am "An Act relating to nunici pal
runoff elections and to nunicipal initiative and referendum
el ections.”

[Before the committee was CSSB 227( STA) am ]
Number 0353

SENATOR GARY STEVENS, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor of SB
227, told the conmttee that the bill basically has two separate
parts. He said he would first speak to the last half, which is
Sections 4, 5, and 6. He explained that he introduced the bill
at the request of I|ocal governnents, in order to avoid costly
initiative elections and referenduns.

SENATOR  GARY STEVENS not ed t hat current law forces
municipalities to hold initiatives and referenduns within 75
days. Normally, municipalities hold their annual elections in
Cct ober; often, having a special election would be costly, tine
consunm ng, and a real burden on nunicipalities. He offered the
exanpl e of the Fairbanks Northstar Borough's having 46 petitions
filed in a four-nonth period. He reported that the result was

only one special election, but it could have been nmuch worse
He expl ained, "Each special election costs them about $35, 000
plus they need additional volunteers; plus there's the workl oad
on nmuni ci pal enpl oyees. "

SENATOR GARY STEVENS conti nued as foll ows:

The goal of this bill is to ... result in cost-savings
to the nunicipalities, if they chose to wait until the
next regular election. The key thing is, you realize,
this gives themthe option; it doesn't force them If
there's an issue that can wait, they can wait until
the next el ection.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS directed attention to the first part of the

bill, Sections 1, 2, and 3, deal specifically with Anchorage and
the requirenent that the mayor have over 50 percent of the vote.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -44- April 30, 2004



He concluded, "So those two were anended on the Senate fl oor
and that's why you have this bill in front of you."

Number 0513

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated that [the content in] Sections 4, 5,
and 6 is essentially what was going to be put forth as a House
bill. He expressed appreciation for [SB 227].

Nunber 0621

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated his support of Sections 4, 5, and
6.

Number 0683

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if this is the same bill that has
resulted in many e-mails being sent to his office regarding
| ocal control

SENATOR GARY STEVENS replied that he suspects it's the sane
bill. He clarified, "The portion | introduced was [ Sections] 4,
5, and 6; the portion introduced on the floor of the Senate by
Senat or Ben Stevens anended it in Sections 1, 2, and 3, which
essentially has to do with the Anchorage ... nayoral election.”

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said the "very hot" e-mails had to do with
the state telling a city what to do after the city had already
taken a vote on "how to do it." He stated concern regarding
"l ess than 50 percent for myor"; however, he said it's a
muni ci pal concern, rather than a state concern

Number 0749

CHAIR VEYHRAUCH renmarked that there seens to be a vague |ine
bet ween | ocal versus state [issues].

SENATOR GARY STEVENS stated that the principle of |ocal contro
is a valid one, and Sections 4, 5, and 6 would allow enornous
| ocal control

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked, "Wat about the 40 percent for
mayor ?"

SENATOR GARY STEVENS reiterated that was an amendnent that was

made on the Senate floor; he voted for it and it passed. He
noted that both distinct issues of the bill fit under the title.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -45- April 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked for guidance regarding [the mayoral
i ssue]j.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS expl ained that the notion on the [Senate]
floor was to require the mayor of Anchorage to have ... over 50
percent of the votes.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he agrees with that philosophically,
but he's not sure he agrees that the state ought to nandate
t hat .

Number 0928

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stated that the commttee would now address
Sections 1, 2, and 3.

Nunmber 0935

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to an e-nmail that he
received from David Ranseur [included in the commttee packet],
expressing concern regarding the anendnent by Senator Ben
Stevens and the [Voting R ghts Act of 1965]. He asked if there
was a legal opinion contrary to what M. Ranseur stated, or if
he may assunme that "there are going to be serious problenms wth
that."

DALE STRAUBE, Staff to Senator Ben Stevens, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, answering questions on behalf of Senator Ben
Stevens, told Representative Guenberg that this is the first
time he has heard of the issue.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the real question is "whether it's
fair to mnority voters." He said he thinks that's an issue
that's as inportant as anything el se.

Number 1050

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to a request by Chair
Weyhrauch, noved to adopt CSSB 227(STA)am as a work draft.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM obj ect ed.
MR. STRAUBE said he doesn't see anything in the aforenentioned
e-mai|l that gives any factual background or case |aw. He said

he doesn't wunderstand how requiring "50 plus 1" violates the
Voting R ghts Act [of 1965].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -46- April 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that it was never said that

the law is |ogical. He expl ained that what the federal Voting
Rights Act [of 1965] requires is "pre-clearance" by the justice
departnment, "with an eye to determining whether ... whatever
change it is may significantly affect the voting rights of a
mnority population.” He said M. Ranseur is meking the point

that raising the requirement from 45 to 50 percent may
negatively effect mnority voters.

MR. STRAUBE noted that prior to the change to 45 percent, the
requi renent was 50 percent. Furthernmore, he offered his
understanding that the charter anmendnent that dropped the
requirenent to 45 percent had not been cleared by the justice
departnent prior to being enacted and "it was after the fact."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that it's not a question of what

it was before, but of what the change is. He offered an
exanpl e.
Nunmber 1244

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt an anmendnent, which read
as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, line 12 to Page 2, Line 6: delete all material
Renunber sections accordingly
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he wanted to make changes to the
anendnent, to delete "12" and insert "4", and to delete "all
material s" and insert "Sections 1-3".
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified that the anmendnent would be called
Amendnent 1 and would include the changes. Anmendnent 1 read as
fol |l ows:
Page 1, line 4 to Page 2, Line 6: delete Sections 1-3
Renunber sections accordingly
Nunber 1288
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to Anendnment 1.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM obj ect ed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -47- April 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered three reasons to support
Amendrent  1: One, there's a significant problem with the U'S
Voting Rights Act and the federal district court says such
changes require pre-clearance with the justice departnent; two,
as Representative Lynn said, the anmendnent [to SB 227] was done
at the state level, but it is a matter of |ocal elections; and
three, "this was passed by a significant majority of Anchorage
voters and this legislature should give deference to that.”" He
added, "If we can do this to Anchorage, then every municipality
in the state is at risk.”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM mai nt ai ned his objection.

Number 1359

SENATOR GARY STEVENS responded that the State of Al aska |aws do
control el ections throughout the state. He noted that
traditional American voting has always been 50 percent, plus
one; that appears in Robert's Rules of Oder. He said he
doesn't see how requiring over half of the public to vote for a
candi date di senfranchises any elenent of the public. He spoke
for leaving this language in the bill. He said, "It is, |

think, perfectly within our right to establish those rules as
state legislature.™

Nunber 1439

MR. STRAUBE said that Anchorage, as the largest community in the
state, has the financial nmeans to hold runoff elections. He
said one of the argunents to drop the nunber to 45 percent to
avoid a runoff had to do with the cost of running the election
He noted, "Well, nost recently, the Anchorage assenbly and the
mayor proposed to put on a ballot question that raised a tax, so
it's obviously well wthin the means of the Anchorage community
to afford to pay for the denocratic process.”

MR. STRAUBE noted that the aforenentioned e-mail has today's
date nmarked on it and was not sent to the sponsor or to other
menbers of the conmmttee. He said he doesn't want to hold up
the bill, but he thinks "you would want to get a |egal coment
from the Departnment of Law, or at |east sonething else a little
nore specific, in witing, other than just an e-nmail from M.
Ranmseur . "

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that there is no policy that the

governor of the state be elected by a mmjority. He said it
| ooks like the operation of Section 3 of the bill would allow a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -48- April 30, 2004



comunity with less than 100,000 residents to "opt out of this
by ordinance.” He indicated that this constitutes serious equa
protection argunents here. He question why the nunicipality of
Anchor age should be "disallowed fromopting out."”

SENATOR GARY STEVENS stated his concern that if the bill fails

it would nmean nore cost to comrunities. He encouraged the
committee to pass the bill as it is.
Nunber 1635

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that he thinks it's poor public
policy for the legislature to be overriding votes of |oca

comunities. He noted that half of the representatives in the
House are representing the communities that "this specifically
deals with,” but he is not one of them therefore, he is willing

to "let them decide on the floor of the House."
Number 1660

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives G uenberg voted in
favor of Anmendnent 1. Representatives Holm Seaton, and
Weyhrauch voted against it. Therefore, Amendnent 1 failed by a
vote of 1-3.

Nunmber 1685

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anendnent 2, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, line 8,
After the words "no candi date recei ves..."
Del ete the word "over"

Page 1, line 14

Del ete "over"

| nsert "nore than"

Page 2, line 3,

Del ete the word "over"

I nsert the words "nore than"
CHAI R VWVEYHRAUCH obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that the term "over" is not
defined in statute.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -49- April 30, 2004



SENATOR GARY STEVENS said he has no objection to Anmendnent 2.

MR. STRAUBE stated that he has no objection to Anrendnment 2.

Number 1730

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH renoved his objection to Anendnent 2. He asked
if there was any further objection. There being none, Amendnent
2 was adopt ed.

Number 1758

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to report CSSB 227(STA)am as anended,
out of commttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

Number 1770

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed.

Number 1780

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Seaton, Lynn, Holm
and Weyhrauch voted in favor of noving CSSB 227(STA)am as
anended, out of conmttee. Representative G uenberg voted
against it. Therefore, HCS CSSB 227(STA) was reported out of
the House State Affairs Standing Committee by a vote of 4-1.

ADJ OURNVENT

Nunber 1811

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 2:41
p. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 50- April 30, 2004



